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THE CITY OF

City Manager's Office 2

City Hall, 13th & Central Avenue
Dubuque, Iowa 52001
(319) 5894110

November 20, 1992

TO THE CITIZENS OF DUBUQUE, IOWA:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for
both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with this governing body. To the
best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material
respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of
this municipality. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the government’s financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections:
introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section
includes this transmittal letter, the govermment'’s organizational chart and a
list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose
financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group
financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report on the
financial statements and schedules. The statistical section includes selected
financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multiyear basis.

The City of Dubuque is required to undergo an annual single audit in
conformity with the provisions of the federal Single Audit Act of 1984 and the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local
Governments. Information related to this single audit, including the schedule
of federal financial assistance, findings and recommendations, and auditor'’s
reports on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

A full range of services are provided by the City of Dubuque. These
services include police and fire protection; sanitation services; the
construction and maintenance of roads, streets, and infrastructure; inspection
and licensing functions; maintenance of grounds and buildings; municipal airport;
library; recreational activities and cultural events. In addition to general
government activities, the municipality owns and operates enterprises for a water
system, water pollution control facility, parking facilities, refuse collection,
and public transportation.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City of Dubuque is locateéd on the Mississippi River, in the northeastern part
of the state, adjacent to the states of Illinois and Wisconsin. It has a stable
and diversified manufacturing base as well as being the major tri-state retail
center. Retail sales in 1991 totaled $530,852,148, a 4.88% growth over 1990
sales. Two industrial park sites have been developed. The eastside industrial
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park, adjacent to the Mississippi River, is fully developed. On the westside,
the Dubuque Industrial Center, consisting of 286 acres, has eight occupants and
only 32 acres remaining for development. Additional industrial development sites
are currently being pursued. For the 9-month period ended September 30, 1992,
Dubuque experienced an average 5.5% unemployment rate compared to a statewide
rate of 4.7% and a national rate of 7.6%.

The major $150 million U.S. Highway 61/151 relocation project into and through
the city is approximately 80% completed and will link the south and west highway
systems to the recently constructed Iowa/Wisconsin bridge and to the
Iowa/Illinois Mississippi River bridge.

Tourism continues to be a major economic boost to the community. The principal
attractions have been the greyhound racing facility and the riverboat casino.
The Dubuque Greyhound Park accommodated 202,175 patroms and recorded wagering
revenue of $19.9 million for its season ended November 8, 1992. For the fiscal
year, the 613,914 persons who boarded the Casino Belle generated wagering revenue
of $19.8 million. Estimates jndicate that 1 million tourists spent in excess of
$80 million this year while visiting Dubuque to take advantage of the amenities
provided by these centers of attraction, or to simply enjoy the architectural and
historical sites abundant in this area.

City government continues to work with the private-sector economy to promote
economic development. As a result of this team effort, several new developments
have occurred or are currently in process. They include:

William C. Brown Publishers expanded its operations into a business park
newly developed by the non-profit development corporation, Dubuque In-
Futuro, Inc. The publishing firm constructed a $1.2 million office
building for its Kendall-Hunt division. The company will hire 160 new
employees within two years and plans to construct three more buildings in
the business park.

Engineering Data Systems, Inc., an engineering software company, expanded
into a 12,000 square foot office building constructed by Dubuque In-
Futuro, Inc. The company will hire 60 new employees and double the
building space within the next year.

In addition to these projects in which local government played a direct role,
there has been a significant increase in retail and office space in the city, and
more is planned. A Toys "R" Us store (30,000 sq. ft.) and a new Eagle Foods
store (49,000 sq. ft.) were opened during this year. More than 40,000 square
feet of new commercial office space was constructed. Expansions are underway at
Target (17,000 sq. ft.), Hy-Vee Foods (15,000 sq. ft.), Eagle Foods (9,000 sq.
ft.), and Econo Foods (15,000 sq. ft.). Site preparation has begun for a Wal-
Mart and Sam’s development to be opened in the fall of 1993.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the Year. Major infrastructure improvements continued during FY 1992. Aided
by proceeds allocated from a 1% local option sales tax, a systematic street
construction and maintenance program for $1,576,672 was completed. An additional
$362,751 was expended for utility work related to the U.S. Highway 61 relocation
project.
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A public hearing was held on May 22, 1992, covering the design phase of the U.S.
Highway 20 Corridor project. It is anticipated that construction will begin in
1995 and should take three years to complete. The project provides for a four-
lane divided highway with overpasses at the major intersections. The cost of the
corridor, estimated to be $40,000,000, will be funded by the Iowa Department of
Transportation.

Sales tax receipts allocated for infrastructure improvements included $206,120
for building maintenance projects, $200,000 for the replacement of a pumper for
the fire department, $120,000 for storm sewer maintenance projects, $108,500 for
the transit system’s bus and shop equipment, $150,000 for the Peru Road bridge
replacement, $71,760 for park maintenance projects, and $94,000 for miscellaneous
public works projects.

The major infrastructure initiatives included the allocation of $5,041,000 for
improvements to the water pollution control plant, $1,187,000 for storm sewer
projects funded by general obligation bonds, $1,103,500 for sanitary sewer
projects, $948,000 for improvements to the water plant and the water distribution
system, $865,000 for economic development projects, and $775,000 for housing
rehabilitation and incentive projects.

In addition to the above, $99,500 was allocated for airport improvements, $93,650
for parking system maintenance projects, $56,400 for equipment needs of the
emergency communication center and remodeling of the E911 backup center, and
$50,000 for shore improvements to the Ice Harbor area.

For the Future. A 1% local option sales tax, approved in FY 1988, remains a
major tool for financing the five-year capital improvement program. The tax
proceeds are allocated for abatement of special assessments (30%), the
maintenance of infrastructure (20%), and the relief of direct property taxation
(50%). The amount collected for this year totaled $4,618,071.

A 5%/7% local option hotel/motel tax, initiated in FY 1980, generated $623,643
in FY 1992. These funds were allocated for general obligation debt service for
the Five Flags Civic Center issue and for the promotion of community tourism.
In November 1991, a referendum passed that. increased the tax from 5% to 7%.

The City Council has addressed the need for infrastructure maintenance and
extension by maintaining a five-year capital improvement plan. The plan is
reviewed and modified annually to provide the framework for both the near-term
and future needs of the community. The five-year plan developed for the years
of 1993-1997 supports improvements that total $60,516,492. It provides
$57,472,413 for facilities and environment projects, $2,110,565 for leisure
services requirements, $713,514 for the protective services area, and $220,000
for various administrative services operations.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

City management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the government are
protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data
is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

Single Audit. As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City
of Dubuque government also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal
control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is
subject to periodic evaluation by management and the internal audit staff. As
a part of the government’'s single audit, described earlier, tests are made to
determine the adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion
related to federal financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that
the government has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The results
of the government’'s single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992,
provided no instances of material weaknesses in the intermal control structure
or significant violations of applicable laws and regulation.

Budgeting Controls. 1In addition, the government maintains budgetary controls.
The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City
Council. Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds and debt service
fund are included in the annual appropriated budget. Project-length financial
plans are adopted for the capital projects funds. The level of budgetary control
(that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated
amount) is established by program and specified individual funds. The government
also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique for
accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end. However,
encumbrances generally are reappropriated as part of the following year's budget.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section
of this report, the government continues to meet its responsibility for sound
financial management.

General Government Functions. The following schedule presents a summary of
general fund, special revenue fund and debt service fund revenues for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1992, and the amount and percentage of increases and
decreases in relation to prior year revenues.
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Increase Percent

Percent (Decrease) of Increase
Revenues Amount of Total from 1991 (Decrease)
(000's) (000's)

Taxes $ 14,420 45.32% S 579 4.18%
Special assessment 295 .93 44) (12.98)
Licenses and permits 639 2.01 21 3.40
Intergovernmental 8,049 25.30 516 6.85
Charges for services 3,150 9.90 274 9.53
Fines and forfeits 346 1.09 (14) (3.89)
Miscellaneous 3,131 9.84 (3,074) (49.54)
Interest 1,785 5.61 (1.129) (38.74)

Total Revenues $ 31,815 100.00% S (2,871)

A significant revenue decrease in miscellaneous revenue was due to the payments
made by the Dubuque Racing Association to defease debt in 1991.

A significant revenue decrease was experienced in investment earnings due to the
decline in interest rates and the unavailability of principal or interest of
funds placed in an escrow receivership account awaiting resolution of the defunct
Iowa Trust.

The tax rate of $5.0395 established for general fund operations is within the
$8.10 per $1,000 of taxable valuation allowed by the Code of Iowa. The ($.2244)
decrease from FY 1991 is a result of nonrecurring sales tax revenue.

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund, special revenue fund
and debt service fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992, and
the percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year amount.

Increase Percent
Percent (Decrease) of Increase
Expenditures Amount of Total from 1991 (Decrease)
(000's) (000's)
Current:
Administration $ 2,270 8.05% S 227 11.11%
Protective services 7,843 27.82 528 7.22
Facilities and environment 9,123 32.35 82 .91
Leisure services 3,429 12.16 207 6.42
Debt Service:
Principal 4,005 14.20 (528) (11.65)
Interest and fiscal charges 1,520 5.39 (864) (36.23)
Capital outlay 7 .03 (169) (96.02)
Other = = - -
Total Expenditures $§ 28.197 _100.00% $ (517)
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Several major expenditure items deserve comment. In the facilities and
environment program, the government aided in the completion of the Nordstorm
distribution center, expended $906,000 for participation in commercial and
industrial loans, initiated the Corporate Center project, continued utility
upgrading related to the U.S. Highway 61 project, concluded the water pollution
control facilities plan and completed both the downtown hotel and ice harbor
improvement projects.

With respect to the area of debt service, the Dubuque Greyhound Racing
Association defeased the balance of the 1990 Urban Renewal TIF Revenue bonds that
had been issued to construct ice harbor facilities associated with the Casino
Belle riverboat venture.

General Fund Balance. The State of Iowa recommends that a working cash balance
for the subsequent year be maintained in an amount equivalent to either (a)
anticipated revenues, less anticipated expenditures, for the first three months,
or (b) five percent of the budget provision.

The five-percent method employed by the City of Dubuque required a reserve amount
of approximately $670,000 as of June 30, 1992, and this amount was available.

Enterprise Operations. The enterprise operations consist of water and wastewater
systems, parking facilities, refuse collection, and a transit system. With
respect to the outstanding parking, sewer and water revenue bonds, earnings from
the related utilities have met bond covenant requirements for net revenues to be
equal to either 130% or 135% of current debt service requirements.

Pension Trust Fund Operations. All employees, except sworn police and fire
personnel, are members of the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System,
administered by the State of Iowa. The employer contributed 5.75% and the
employees contributed 3.7% of covered wages to a $34,000 maximum.

Prior to January 1, 1992, the sworn fire and police personnel were members of
separate fire and police retirement systems that were administered locally in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 411 of the Code of Iowa. For this part
of the year, the employees contributed from 5.1% to 9.1% of covered wages; the
employer'’s contribution rate, applied against the same wage base, was at the rate
of 22.96% for fire department members and 27.65% for police department members.
Effective January 1, 1992, the separate fire and police retirement systems were
integrated into a single statewide retirement system prescribed in Chapter 411.35
of the Code of Iowa. For this latter half of the year, the employee rates
remained the same; the employer’s contribution was based on a statutory rate of
17.0%.

Debt Administration. At June 30, 1992, the City of Dubuque had a number of debt
issues outstanding. These issues included $16,255,000 of general obligation
bonds, $2,411,429 of tax-increment financing bonds, $350,000 of special
assessment debt with government commitment and $5,170,000 of revenue bonds. The
government has maintained its Aa rating from Moody’s Investors Service on general
obligation bond issues. Under current state statutes, the government'’s general
obligation bonded debt issuances are subject to a legal limitation based on 5
percent of total actual value of real property. As of June 30, 1992, the
government'’s net general obligation bonded debt of $16,255,000 was well below the
legal limit of $56,484,534, and debt per capita equaled $298.
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Cash Management. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand
deposits, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury
securities, federal agency obligations, authorized mutual funds, and an
investment pool approved by the State of Iowa. The investment portfolios of both
the fire and police retirement systems also included corporate bonds and stocks,
variable annuity contracts, and guaranteed real estate contracts. The City
recorded investment earnings of $2,572,897 for the year, and the combined
earnings of the fire and police retirement systems amounted to $1,952,195 for the
abbreviated period.

The investment policy adopted by the City Council stresses the importance of
capital preservation. The policy directives intend to minimize credit and market
risks while maintaining a competitive yield on the portfolio. Accordingly,
deposits were either covered by federal depository insurance or collateralized.
All collateral on uninsured deposits was held either by the State Treasurer, the
government, its agent, or a financial institution’s trust department in the
government's name. Over 75% of the investments subject to risk categorization
were classified in the category of lowest credit risk as defined by the
Government Accounting Standards Board. The non-classified investments included
mutual funds, investment pool, variable annuity contracts, and real estate
contracts. The government’'s deferred compensation mutual fund is included in
this section.

Risk Management. The City of Dubuque is a member of a statewide risk pool for
local governments, the Iowa Communities Assurance Pool. The coverage for general
and auto liability, as well as public official and police professional liability,
are acquired through this agency. Worker’s compensation coverage up to $400,000
for each accident is provided through self-insurance. The accumulated reserve
provision for such claims equaled $491,046 as of June 30, 1992.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by independent
certified public accountants. The accounting firm of Charles Bailly & Company,
CPAs, was selected for this purpose. In addition to meeting the requirements set
forth in state statutes, the audit also was. designed to meet the requirements of
the federal Single Audit Act of 1984 and related OMB Circular A-128. The
auditor’s report on the general purpose financial statements and combining and
individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of
this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are
included in the Single Audit Section.

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA), awarded a certificate of achievement for excellence in financial
reporting to the City of Dubuque, Iowa, for its comprehensive annual financial
report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991.

In order to be awarded a certificate of achievement, a government must publish
an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial
report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
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A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The current
report will be submitted to the GFOA for review and recommendations.
Expectations are high that this year's report will again meet the standards for
excellence in financial reporting. Efforts were made to correct past
deficiencies and to incorporate suggested improvements.

Acknowledgments. We compliment the staff of the finance division for its help
in preparing this report. We also commend the City Council and all department
and division managers for their interest and support in planning and conducting
the financial operations of the City of Dubuque in a responsible and progressive
manner. We also thank the independent certified public accountants, Charles
Bailly & Company, whose competent assistance and technical expertise have enabled
the production of this report.

Sincerely,
%ﬁson Duane R. Pitcher
Acting City Manager Finance Director
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Charles Bailly & Company

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council:

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial
statements and the combining and individual fund and account group
financial statements of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, as of June 30,
1992, and for the year then ended, as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the respon51b111ty of the
C1ty of Dubuque’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa, Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, and the provisions of Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-128, Audits of State and ILocal Governments. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting ‘the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements: An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred
to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the City of Dubuque as of June 30, 1992,
and the results of its operations and the cash flows of 1ts
proprietary and similar trust fund types for the year then ended in
conformity'with generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in
our opinion, the combining and individual fund and account group
financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of each of
the individual funds and account groups of the City of Dubuque as
of June 30, 1992, and the results of operations of such funds and
the cash flows of individual proprietary and similar trust funds
for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.
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As discussed in Note 20 to the financial statements, the City of
Dubuque has invested in the Iowa Trust. On December 11, 1991, the
Securities and Exchange Commission initiated an action against the
Trust’s investment manager, Institutional Treasury Management, and
froze all assets of the investment manager, including those of the
Iowa Trust. Subsequently, a receiver for Iowa Trust was appointed
by the court and the remaining assets were unfrozen. It is
presently uncertain whether the TIowa Trust and the member
governments will be able to recover all funds controlled by the
investment manager. Accordingly, the financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.

our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on
the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole and on
the combining and individual fund and account group financial
statements. The information listed as "Supplementary Supporting
Schedules" and "Statistical Section" in the table of contents is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements of the City of Dubuque. Such
information, except for that portion marked "unaudited" on which we
express no opinion, has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the general purpose, combining and
individual fund and account group financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation
to the financial statements of each of the respective individual
funds and account groups, taken as a whole.

Ohorlic 5lfy 4 Cmpory

Dubuque, Iowa
November 20, 1992
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 1992

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Dubuque, Iowa, have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant accounting policies of
the City are described below.

Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the city for financial reporting
purposes, management has considered all potential component units.
The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GAAP. The
basic--but not the only--criterion for 1nclud1ng a potential
component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body’s
ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant
manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other
manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility
include, but are not 1limited to, the selection of governing
authority, the designation of management, the ability to
significantly influence operatlons, and accountability for fiscal
matters. A second criterion used in evaluatlng potential component
units is the scope of public service. Application of this
criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the
government and/or its citizens, or whether the activity is
conducted within the geographic boundaries of the government and is
generally available to its citizens. A third criterion used to
evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from
the reporting entity 1is the existence of special financing
relationships, regardless of whether the government is able to
exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the application of
these criteria, the following is a brief review of each potential
component unit addressed in defining the government’s reporting
entity.

Included within the reporting entity:

city of Dubuque Carnegie Stout Library. The City’s library board
is appointed by the city of Dubuque City Council. The bond
issuance authorizations are approved by the City Council after
referendum and the 1legal 1liability for the 1library general
obligation debt remains with the City of Dubuque.

city of Dubuque Airport. The City’s airport commission is
appointed by the City of Dubuque City Council. The bond issuance
authorizations are approved by the City Council and the 1legal
liability for the airport general obligation debt remains with the
City of Dubuque.
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C1ty of Dubuque Civic Center. The City’s civic center commission
is appointed by the Clty of Dubuque City Council. The rates for
user charges and bond issuance authorizations are approved by the
City Council after referendum, and the legal liability for the
civic center general obligation debt remains with the City of
Dubuque.

City of Dubuque Cable TV. The City’s cable TV commission is
appointed by the City of Dubuque City Council. The commission
advises the City Council and staff on policy issues regarding cable
television and the cable television operator’s compliance with its
franchise agreement with the City of Dubuque.

City of Dubuque Transit Board. The City’s transit board is
appointed by the City of Dubuque City Council. Additionally, the
rates for user charges are approved by the City Council.

City of Dubuque Park and Recreation Commission. The City’s park and
recreation commission is appointed by the City of Dubuque City
Council. Any bond issuance authorizations are approved by the City
Council after referendum, and the legal llablllty for the park and
recreation general obligation debt remains with the City of
Dubuque. Also, the rates for user charges are approved by the City
Council.

Excluded from the reporting entity:

Dubugque Independent School District and Dubuque Metropolitan Area
Solid Waste Agency. These potential component units have separate
elected boards and provide services to residents generally within
the geographic boundaries of the government. These potential
component units are excluded from the reporting entity because the
government does not have the ability to exercise influence over
their daily operations, approve budgets, or provide funding.

Dubuque Racing Association, LTD. This non-governmental unit has a
separate elected board of directors that selects management staff,

establishes budgets, and controls all aspects of general manaqément
and develgpment. This non-governmental unit is excluded from the
reporting entity because the City does not have the ability to
exercise influence over its daily operations, approve budgets, or
provide funding for operations. The City of Dubuque owns the
Dubuque Racing Association’s land and structure. The City funded
the development of the land and structure by issuing general
obligation bonds. The Dubuque Racing Association makes periodic
payments to the City in order for the City to pay off the bond
principal and interest as it comes due. When the bond principal is
paid off, the City retains ownership of the land and structure.
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Dubuque in Futuro, Inc. This non-profit corporation has a separate
elected board of directors that establishes budgets and controls
all aspects of general management and development. This non-profit
corporation is excluded from the reporting entity because the City
does not have the ability to exercise influence over its daily
operations, approve budgets, or provide funding for operations.

Fund Accounting

The City uses funds and account groups to report on its financial
position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is
designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial
management by segregating transactions related to certain
government functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts. An account group, on the other hand, is a financial
reporting device designed to provide accountability for certain
assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because
they do not directly affect net expendable available financial
resources.

Funds are classified into three categories: governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided
into separate "fund types".

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a
government’s general activities, including the collection and
disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue funds), the
acquisition or construction of general fixed assets (capital
projects funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt
service funds). The general fund is used to account for all
activities of the general government not accounted for in some
other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to
those found in the private sector where the determination of net
income is necessary or useful for sound financial administration.
Goods or services from such activities can be provided either to
outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or
agencies primarily within the government (internal service funds).

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of
outside parties, including other governments, or on behalf of other
funds within the government. When these assets are held under the
terms of a formal trust agreement, either a pension trust fund, a
nonexpendable trust fund, or an expendable trust fund is used. The
terms "nonexpendable" and "expendable" refer to whether or not the
government is under an obligation to maintain the trust principal.
Agency funds generally are used to account for assets that the
government holds on behalf of others as their agent.
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Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund
is determined by its measurement focus. All governmental funds and
expendable trust funds are accounted for using a current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only
current assets and current liabilities generally are included on
the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present
increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and
decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net
current assets.

All proprietary funds, nonexpendable trust funds, and pension trust
funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the
balance sheet. Proprietary funds segregate equity (i.e., net total
assets) into contributed capital and retained earnings components.
Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (e.qg.,
revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all
governmental fund types, expendable trust funds, and agency funds.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both
measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the
transaction can be determined, and "available" means collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to
pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers
property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days
after year end. A one-year availability period is used for revenue
recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures
are recorded when the related fund 1liability is incurred.
Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as
fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in
the debt service fund for payments to be made early in the
following year.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise
taxes, local option sales taxes, special assessments, licenses,
interest revenue, and charges for services. Fines, permits, and
parking meter revenues are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund
types, pension trust funds, and nonexpendable trust funds. Under
this method, revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.
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The City reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet.
Deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet both
the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the
current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are
received by the City before it has a legal claim to them, as when
grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying
expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition
criteria are met, or when the City has a 1legal claim to the
resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the
combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

Budgetary and Legal Appropriation and Amendment Policies

The State Code of Iowa requires the adoption of an annual budget on
or before March 15 of each year which becomes effective July 1 and
constitutes the appropriation for each program specified therein
until amended. The legal level of control (the level on which
expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the program
level. Appropriations as adopted and amended lapse at the end of
the fiscal year.

After the initial annual budget is adopted, it may be amended for
specified purposes. Budget amendments must be prepared and adopted
in the same manner as the original budget. Management is not
authorized to amend the budget or to make budgetary transfers
between programs without the approval of the City Council. The
city has adopted a policy relative to budgetary control and
amendment which provides for control at the line-item level and
review of the current year’s budget at the time the next year’s
budget 1is prepared. This usually results in amending the
appropriations of all programs to adjust to current conditions.
Supplemental appropriations are only provided when unanticipated
revenues or budget surpluses become available. Individual
amendments were not material in relation to the originally adopted
amounts.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts
for goods or services. Encumbrance accounting--under which
purchase _ orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of
the applicable appropriation--is utilized in the governmental
funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as
reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the
subsequent year.

The City’s budget for the governmental-type funds are prepared on
the cash basis of accounting. Budgeted amounts are as originally
adopted or as amended by the City Council. Individual amendments
were not material in relation to the originally appropriated
amounts.
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The accompanying "Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) -
General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds" presents
comparisons of the legally adopted budget with actual data on a
budgetary basis. Since accounting principles applied for purposes
of developing data on a budgetary basis differ significantly from
those used to present financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles, a reconciliation of
resultant basis, timing, perspective, and entity differences in
excess of revenues and other sources of financial resources over
expenditures and other uses of financial resources for the year
ended June 30, 1992, is presented as follows:

Special Debt
General Revenue Service
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues and other
financing sources over
(under) expenditures
and other financing
uses (budgetary basis) $ (434,458) $1,434,542 $ 98,986
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues
for accruals 31,735 (127,202) 9,358
To adjust expenditures
for accruals (114,708) 1,180,016 -

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues and other
financing sources over
(under) expenditures
and other financing

uses (GAAP basis) $_(517,431) $2,487,356 $__108,344

cash and Pooled Cash Investments

Cash includes amounts on hand, funds included in demand deposits,
and short-term investments with a maturity date within three months
of the date of acquisition.

Statutes authorize the City to exercise considerable latitude in
the selection of investment opportunities as long as the investment
is deemed to be prudent and is not specifically prohibited. The
City is not allowed to invest in common, preferred, or guaranteed
stock, except for pension trust funds and the deferred compensation
mutual fund. The single instance of stock ownership by the City is
attributable to a conditional gift.

Investments are stated at cost or amortized cost, except for

investments in the deferred compensation mutual fund which are
reported at market value.
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For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all
highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a
maturity of three months or 1less when purchased to be cash
equivalents.

Unbilled Revenues

The Sewage Disposal Works, Water Utility, and Refuse Collection
funds accrue unbilled revenues for services rendered subsequent to
the last billing date and prior to year-end based upon the number
of days unbilled compared to the first billing subsequent to year-
end. At June 30, 1992, unbilled utility receivables for the
aforementioned funds were included in accounts receivable and
totaled $415,699.

Short-term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur
between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered.
These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other
funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

Inventories

Inventories included in internal service funds are stated at the
lower of cost or market and consist of consumable supplies. The
cost of these supplies is recorded as an expense at the time they
are removed from inventory for use. Inventories of materials and
supplies in the enterprise funds are determined by actual count and
priced on the first-in, first-out basis.

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods
beyond June 30, 1992, are recorded as prepaid items.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as
certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as
restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited
by applicable bond covenants. The "revenue bond operations"
account 1is used to report resources set aside to subsidize
potential deficiencies from the enterprise fund’s operation that
could adversely affect debt service payments. The "revenue bond
construction" account is used to report those proceeds of revenue
bond issuances that are restricted for use in construction. The
"revenue bond sinking" account is used to segregate resources
accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months.
The "revenue bond reserve" account is used to report resources set
aside to make up potential future deficiencies in the revenue bond
sinking account. The "revenue bond renewal and replacement"
account is used to report resources set aside to meet unexpected
contingencies or to fund asset renewals and replacements.
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Fixed Assets

General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to
acquire or construct then. Instead, capital acquisition and
construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds,
and the related assets are reported in the general fixed assets
account group. All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost where
historical records are available and at an estimated historical
cost where no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are
valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not
capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of the related fixed assets as applicable.

Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets consisting of
roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage
systems, and lighting systems are not capitalized, as these assets
are immovable and of value only to the government.

Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not
depreciated. Depreciation of buildings, improvements, and
machinery and equipment in the proprietary fund types is computed
using the straight-line method.

Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources is
reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental
fund that will pay it. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation
leave that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources are reported in the general long-term
debt account group. No expenditure is reported for these amounts.
Vested or accumulated vacation 1leave of proprietary funds is
recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits
accrue to employees. In accordance with the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 43, Accounting For
Compensated Absences, no 1liability is recorded for nonvesting
accumulated rights to receive sick pay benefits. However, a
liability is recognized for that portion of accumulating sick leave
benefits that it is estimated will be allowed at retirement.
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Long-term Obligations

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund
when due, or when resources have been accumulated in the debt
service fund for payment early in the following year. For other
long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed
from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund
liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such
obligations is reported in the general long-term debt account
group. Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from
proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds.

Fund Equity

Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that have
received «capital grants or contributions from developers,
customers, or other funds. Reserves represent those portions of
fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated
for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent
tentative plans for future use of financial resources.

Interfund Transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues,
expenditures, or expenses. Transactions that constitute
reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded
as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions
of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external
transactions and reimbursements, are reported -as transfers.
Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are
reported as residual equity transfers. All other interfund
transfers are reported as operating transfers.

aAdvances to Other Funds

Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables are
reported as advances in proprietary fund types.

Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are
captioned "memorandum only" to indicate that they are presented
only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do
not present financial position, results of operations, or changes
in financial position in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Neither are such data comparable to a
consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the
aggregation of this data.
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Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in
the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an
understanding of changes in the government’s financial position and
operations. However, comparative data have not been presented in
all statements because their inclusion would make certain
statements unduly complex and difficult to understand.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts relating to fiscal year 1991 have been reclassified
to conform to the current year presentation.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes in econonic,
industrial, or geographic factors similarly affect groups of
counterparts in their ability to meet contractual obligations. The
City operates in the Dubuque County, Iowa, area. Due to this, the
City’s operations are dependent on this region’s economic
condition.

Note 2. Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created
in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan,
available to all government employees, permits them to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. Participation in the
plan is optional. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan;
all property and rights purchased with those amounts; and all
income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are
(until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary)
solely the property and rights of. the City subject only to the
claims of the City’s general creditors. Participants’ rights under
the plan are equal to those of general creditor of the City in an
amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for
each participant.

It is the opinion of the City’s legal counsel that the City has no
liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due
care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The
City believes that it is unlikely that it will use the assets to
satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future.

Investments are managed by the plan’s trustee under one of four

investment options, or a combination thereof. The choice of the
investment option(s) is made by the participants.
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Note 3. Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the government provides
certain health care benefits for retired disabled police officers
and firefighters as mandated by Chapter 411.15 of the Code of Iowa.
The cost of health care benefits for retired disabled police
officers and firefighters is recognized as an expenditure as claims
are paid. As of June 30, 1992, 42 retirees were eligible for these
benefits, and the cost of the benefits for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1992, totaled $22,000.

Note 4. Employee Retirement Systems
MFPRSI

The City of Dubuque is a participating employer in the Municipal
Fire and Police Retirement System of Iowa (MFPRSI). This single
cost—sharing statewide multiple-employer fire and police retirement
system is a defined benefit plan that covers members of the fire
and police departments who have been appointed under civil service.
Participation is mandatory for all members appointed after March 2,
1934, except for a chief who would not complete 22 years of service
by age 55 and who makes a written request for exemption. The
statewide retirement system became effective January 1, 1992, and
replaced the individual city fire and police retirement systems
that had operated under Chapter 411 of the Code of Iowa.

This penSion plan provides retirement, disability, and death
benefits in accordance with statutory eligibility requirements.
Normal retirement is elective for members who have both attained
the age of 55 and have completed 22 years of service. Accidental
death and disability benefits are available regardless of age
attainment and length of service. These benefits are attributable
to events sustained in line of duty that result in death or
permanent disability. Ordinary disability benefits are provided
for permanent disability not incurred in 1line of duty. Though
eligibility may be attained at any age, the benefit is less for
service of less than 4 years. Alternatives exist for ordinary
death benefits depending upon whether the member was or was not in
service at the time of death and years of service. A reduced
benefit (termination benefit) is available at age 55 for members
who have completed at least 4 years of service upon termination of
membership before age 55, or at least 4 years of service upon
termination of membership after age 55.

Benefit calculations are generally based upon the average of the
highest 3 years of earnable compensation. The benefit allowance
varies in accordance with the type of benefit and the eligibility
for additional service credits. The plan provides that all
benefits, except termination benefits, are subject to escalation as
of July 1 and January 1 relative to pay increases granted to the
fire and police department members on said dates.
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Since the plan is administered by the statewide system, the City’s
responsibility is limited to the payment of contributions due from
the City and the active members of the fire and police departments.
The statutory contribution rates were 17.0% for the employer and
between 5.1% and 9.1% for the employees. Inasmuch as no ceiling
limitation exists, the rates were applied against the entire amount
of earnable compensatlon. for the period. For the period of
January 1 through June 30, 1992, the City contributed $444,836 and
the employees contributed $165,640. The contributions were derived
by applying the appropriate rates against earnable compensation of
$2,616,682. Information showing the City’s contribution as a
percentage of total contributions of all participating entities is
not yet available from MFPRSI.

The "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized disclosure
measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the
effects of projected salary increases and step—rate benefits,
estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee
service to date. The measure, which is the actuarial present value
of credited projected benefits, is intended to help users assess
MFPRSI’s funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress
made in accumulatlng sufficient assets to pay benefits when due,
and make comparisons among public employee retirement systems and
among employers. MFPRSI does not make separate measurements of
assets and pension benefit obligation for individual employers.

Information regarding MFPRSI’s pension benefit obligation and net
assets available for benefits at June 30, 1992, is not vyet
available from MFPRSI.

Historical trend information showing MFPRSI‘s progress in
accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits- when due is
presented in its annual report.

IPERS

The City of Dubuque is a participating employer in the Iowa Public
Employees Retirement System (IPERS) which is a cost-sharlng
multiple-employer public employees retirement system designed as a
supplement to Social Security.

All employees earning in excess of $300 per quarter who do not
participate in any other public retirement system in the State are
eligible and must participate in IPERS. The pension plan provides
retirement and death benefits which are established by State
statute. Generally, a member may retire at age 65 or any time
after age 62 with 30 years or more of service or when age plus
years of service equals or exceeds 92, and receive unreduced (for
age) benefits. Members may also retlre at the age of 55 or more at
reduced benefits. Benefits vest after four years of service or
after attaining the age of 55. Full benefits are equal to fifty-
four percent of the average of the highest three years of covered
wages times years of service divided by 30.
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The plan is administered by the State of Iowa and the City’s
responsibility is limited to payment of contributions. The
contribution rates are actuarially determined; during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1992, State statute requires contributions of
3.70% by the employee and 5.75% by the employer. These rates are
applied on the first $31,000 of compensation in calendar year 1991
and on the first $34,000 of compensation in calendar year 1992.
The contribution paid by the City for the year ended June 30, 1592,
totaled $547,041 and the contribution paid by employees totaled
$352,009. The total payroll for employees covered by IPERS for the
year ended June 30, 1992, was $9,513,750 and the total City payroll
was $15,759,483. The City’s employer and employee contributions
during the year ended June 30, 1992, represented .32 percent of
total contributions of all participating entities.

The "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized disclosure
measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the
effects of projected salary increases and step-rate benefits,
estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee
service to date. The measure, which is the actuarial present value
of credited projected benefits, is intended to help users assess
IPERS’ funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress
made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due,
and make comparisons among public employee retirement systems and
among employers. IPERS does not make separate measurements of
assets and pension benefit obligation for individual employers. At
June 30, 1992, the pension benefit obligation for IPERS as a whole,
determined through an actuarial valuation performed as of that
date, was $5,597,572,968. IPERS’ net assets available for benefits
on that date valued at cost were $5,646,470,378 (valued at market
were $6,225,257,155) leaving no unfunded pension benefit
obligation. -

Historical trend information showing IPERS’ ©progress 1in
accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is
presented in its annual report. IPERS does not invest 1in
obligations of the State of Iowa or its political subdivisions.

Note 5. Cash on Hand, Deposits and Investments

Cash on Hand. Cash on hand represents undeposited collections
together with authorized change funds and petty cash funds used for
current operating purposes. The carrying amount at year end was
$26,150.

Deposits. At year end, the carrying amount of deposits was
$4,864,158 and the bank balance was $4,771,314. O0f the bank
balance, $885,000 was covered by depository insurance. The balance
was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institutions’ agents in the City’s name.
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Investments. The City classifies its investments into categories
which present an indication of the level of credit risk in relation
to the nature of the investment and the custodial provisions.
Category 1 records securities that are insured, registered, held by
the City, or held by the City’s agent in the City’s name. Category
2 denotes uninsured and unregistered securities that are held by a
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the City’s name.
Category 3 specifies uninsured and unregistered securities that are
held by a counterparty’s trust department or agent in other than

the City’s name.

Categories Carrying Market
1 2 3 Amount Value
Repurchase
Agreements S 135,000 $ - $ - S 135,000 $ 135,000
U.S. Treasury
Securities - 1,321,711 - 1,321,711 1,381,094
Federal Agency
Obligations 13,705,056 2,798,242 = 16,503,298 16,606,320
Corporate Stock 7,088 - - 7.088 38,295
$13,847,144 $_4,119,953 $ - 17,967,097 18,160,709
Variable Annuity Contract 3,000,000 3,622,192
Guaranteed Real Estate Contracts 973,778 973,778
Investment Pools:
Mutual U.S. Government Bond Fund 6,356,365 6,356,365
State Investment Pool - Iowa Trust 17,197,698 17,197,698
Deferred Compensation Mutual Fund 3,766,832 3,766,832
Total Investments $49,261,770 $50,077.574

As discussed in Note 20, it is presently uncertain whether the City
will be able to recover all funds invested in the Iowa Trust.
Accordingly, the market value of the City’s investments does not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.

Statutes require that all uninsured deposits be collateralized at
110 percent and that the collateral pledged for the deposits be
held in the City’s name by an independent depository bank other
than the pledging bank.

Note 6. Cash and Pooled Cash Investments - Overdraft

When a fund overdraws its share of a pooled cash account, the
overdraft is reported as an interfund payable in that fund. The
Community Development Fund, the Park Construction Fund, the
Corporate Center Construction Fund, and the Stores/Printing Fund
overdrew their shares of the City’s pooled cash account. The
offsetting interfund receivable has been reported in the General
Fund. The difference between the General Fund’s carrying amount of
the cash pool and the equity displayed on the General Fund’s
balance sheet amounts to $579,058.
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Note 7. Fixed Assets

The following is a summary of changes in the general fixed assets
account group during the fiscal year:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
1991 Additions Retirements 1992
Land $ 9,207,822 S 60,000 $ - $ 9,267,822
Buildings 35,533,887 80,545 - 35,614,432
Improvements other
than buildings 4,810,840 - - 4,810,840
Machinery and
equipment 9,166,489 1,351,867 914,777 9,603,579
Construction in
progress = 13,152 = 13,152
Total General Fixed
Assets $58,719,038 $ 1,505,564 $ 914,777 $59,309,825

The following is a summary of proprietary fund type assets at
June 30, 1992:

Internal
Enterprise Service
Funds Funds
Land $ 1,170,086 $ -
Buildings 38,675,275 -
Improvements other than
buildings 9,224,742 -
Machinery and equipment 23,114,302 23,816
Construction in progress 939,335 - -
Less: accumulated
depreciation (36,291,942) (16,840)
Net Fixed Assets $36,831,798 S 6,976

In proprietary funds, the following estimated useful lives are used
to compute depreciation:

Buildings 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 50 years
Machinery and equipment 4-20 years

Note 8. Long-term Debt

General Obligation Bonds. The City issues general obligation bonds
to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for
general government.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full
faith and credit of the City. These bonds generally are issued as
serial bonds with varying amounts of principal maturing annually
and with interest payable semi-annually. General obligation bonds
outstanding at June 30, 1992, are as follows:
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Amount Amount
Date of Maturity Interest Originally Outstanding
Purpose Issue Dates Rates Issued End of Year
Library 12/01/78 06/01/81-06/01/92 5.20-6.00% $ 3,180,000 S 400,000
Debt service 09/01/83 05/01/84-05/01/94 7.40-8.00 1,940,000 500,000
Airport 07/01/84 05/01/86-05/01/94 8.75-9.20 750,000 200,000
Corporate
purpose 05/01/85 05/01/87-05/01/99 8.00-9.25 4,700,000 4,125,000
Corporate
purpose 03/01/87 05/01/88-05/01/01 4.40-5.60 4,000,000 3,675,000
Corporate
purpose 06/01/89 05/01/91-05/01/00 6.50-6.70 4,150,000 3,245,000
Corporate
purpose 05/15/90 05/01/91-05/01/00 6.50-6.80 1,965,000 1,715,000
Corporate
purpose 05/01/91 05/01/92-05/01/02 5.50-6.10 2,500,000 2,395,000

$23,185,000

$16,255,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation
bonds, including interest of $5,020,039, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997

1998-2002

Total

Tax-Increment Financing Bonds.
financing bonds to provide funds for urban renewal projects.
City pledges property tax revenues from the tax-increment financing

districts to pay debt service.

General Long-Term
Debt Account Group

$

$

3,336,887
2,983,627
2,684,165
2,662,690
2,498,922
7,108,748

21,275,039

The City issues tax-increment

The

These bonds generally are issued as

serial bends with varying amounts of principal maturing annually

and with interest payable semi-annually.
bonds outstanding at June 30,
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Amount Amount

Date of Maturity Interest Originally Outstanding

Purpose Issue Dates Rates Issued End of Year
Couler

Valley 07/01/86 06/01/90-06/01/97 7.50% $ 350,000 $ 240,000

Metrix 09/01/88 07/01/91-07/01/94 10.00 125,000 71,429

Blue Moon 08/08/90 08/01/91-08/01/96 8.00-8.75 1,200,000 1,100,000

Nordstrom 03/01/91 08/01/93-08/01/98 7.13-8.56 1,000,000 1,000,000

$ 2,675,000 $_2,411,429

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for tax-increment
financing bonds, including interest of $652,444, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Amount
1993 S 444,847
1994 593,777
1995 541,032
1996 567,007
1997 537,390
1998-1999 379,820
Total $ 3,063,873

Revenue Bonds. The City also issues bonds where the City pledges
income derived from acquired or constructed assets to pay debt
service. These bonds generally are issued as serial bonds with
varying amounts of principal maturing annually and with interest
payable semi-annually. Revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 1992,
are as follows:

Amount Amount
Date of Maturity Interest Originally Outstanding

Purpose Issue Dates Rates Issued End of Year
Sewage

disposal

works 02/01/69 11/01/71-11/01/92 5.00-5.50% $ 2,000,000 $ 200,000
Water

utility 07/01/76 07/01/77-07/01/96 5.00-6.50 5,700,000 2,050,000
Parking

facilities 05/15/90 05/01/92-05/01/10 7.40-7.63 3,000,000 2,920,000

$10,700,000 $_5,170,000
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Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity, including
interest of $2,710,290, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Amount
1993 S 953,157
1994 776,019
1995 752,959
1996 735,929
1997 761,909

1998 - 2002 1,498,615

2003 - 2007 1,505,858

2008 - 2010 895,844
Total

$_7,880,290

Special Assessment Debt. Special assessment bonds have been issued
to provide funds for street construction projects to serve
residential developments. These bonds are issued as serial bonds
with varying amounts of principal maturing annually and with
interest payable semi-annually. A City-funded reserve fund for
special assessments has been established to cover any defaults by
property owners and will be used to service special assessment
debt. This reserve fund has a balance of $788,371 at June 30 ;
1992. Special assessment bonds outstanding at June 30, 1992, are
as follows:

Amount Amount
Date of Maturity Interest Originally Outstanding
Purpose Issue Dates Rates Issued End of Year

Street im- -

provements 08/01/86 12/01/86—12/01/95 6.00-7.90% S 500,000 ¢S 200,000
Street im-

provements 09/01/87 12/01/87-12/01/96 6.00-8.00 300,000 150,000

$ 800,000 $ 350,000

Special assessment bond debt service requirements to maturity,
including interest of $74,300, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Amount
1993 S 112,850
1994 99,225
1995 93,050
1996 86,775
1997 32,400

Total $ 424,300
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Notes Payable.

Notes payable have been issued to provide funds for

economic development and for a golf course irrigation project.

Notes payable at June 30, 1992, are as follows:
Amount Amount
Date of Maturity Interest Originally Outstanding
Purpose Issue Dates Rates Issued End of Year
Econonic
development 04/02/84 05/15/89-05/15/98 None $ 250,000 $ 150,000
Economic
development 07/11/85 09/01/88-09/01/95 None 250,000 125,000
Golf course
irrigation
project 06/22/90 09/01/90-06/21/95 9.44% 110,000 91,309
Econonic
development 11/30/90 10/01/9° None 190,000 190,000
$ 800,000 $ 556,309
Debt service requirements to maturity on notes payable, including

interest of $29,820, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30 Amount
1993 S 71,250
1994 71,250
1995 147,37°
1996 56,250
1997 25,000

1998 - 2000 215,000
Total S 586,129

Changes in Long-term Liabilities.

During the fiscal year ended

June 30, 1992, the following changes occurred in liabilities
reported in the general long-term debt account group:
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
1991 Additions Reductions 1992
Accrued Employee

Benefits $ 233,700 $ 89,815 $ - $ 323,515
Notes Payable -

Long-Term 618,298 - 61,989 556,309
Special Assessment Debt 430,000 - 80,000 350,000
General Obligation Debt 18,395,000 - 2,140,000 16,255,000
Tax-Increment Financing

Debt 4,171,154 - 1,759,725 2,411,429

Totals $23,848,152 $ 89,815 $_4,041,714 $19,896,253
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Note 9. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied as of July 1 on property values assessed
as of the previous January 1. The tax levy is divided into two
billings. The first billing is mailed on July 1 and the second
billing is mailed on January 1. The billings are considered due
upon receipt by the taxpayer; however, the actual due date is based
on a period ending three months after the tax bill mailing. On
these dates (September 30 and March 31), the bill becones
delinquent, and penalties and interest may be assessed by the
government. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on
July 1.

Note 10. Prior Year Defeasance of Debt

In prior years, the City defeased certain general obligation and
revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments
on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the
liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City’s
financial statements. At June 30, 1992, $7.11 million of bonds
outstanding are considered defeased.

Note 11. Individual Fund Disclosures

Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following funds:

Fund Expenditures Appropriations
UDAG Repayments $ 1,271,663 S 386,893
Section VIII Housing 3,016,247 2,910,158
Debt Service 3,413,271 - 3,411,793
Dog Track 1,652,214 1,644,164

The following funds had deficit fund balances/retained earnings
amounts as of June 30, 1992: i

Capital Projects:

Park Construction S (143)

Corporate Center Construction (322,132)
Enterprise:

Transit System (9,112,720)
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Due To/From Other Funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Community Development 8 47,615
Section VIII Housing 8
Park Construction 143

Corporate Center

Construction 529,820
Refuse Collection 301
Transit System 9
Garage Service 630
Stores/Printing 1,480
Total $ 580,006

Advances To/From Other Funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Health Insurance
Reserve Parking Facilities $ 309,600

Note 12. Fund Transfer Reconciliation

The following is a schedule of operating transfers in and out as
included in the combined, combining, and individual fund financial
statements of the City:

Transfers In Transfers Out

General Fund $ 2,292,975 $ 137,249
Special Revenue Funds:

Community Development - - 52,318

Sales Tax = 3,310,041
Debt Service Funds:

Debt Service 95,965 -

Tax Increment . 50,048 438,376

Special Assessment = 41,617
Capital Projects Funds:

Street Construction 1,615,164 -

Storm Sewer Construction 1,002,000 -

General Construction 438,376 33,281

General Obligation Bond Proceeds - 2,470,000

Airport Construction 44,100 -

Park Construction 13,560 -

Sales Tax Construction 902,970 -

Golf Construction 27,724 -
Internal Service Funds:

Health Insurance Reserve = 125,000

Workers Compensation Reserve - 50,000
Trust and Agency Funds:

Trust and Agency 175,000 -

Totals $_ 6,657,882 S 6,657,882
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The following is a schedule of residual equity transfers in and out
and of contributed capital transfers in and out of the enterprise
funds as included in the combined, combining, and individual fund
financial statements of the City:

Transfers In Transfers Out

Residual Equity Transfers:

General Fund $ - $ 85,991
Special Revenue Funds:
Community Development = 915,157
State Rental Rehabilitation 915,157 -
Capital Projects Funds:
Sales Tax Construction - 33,589
Total Residual Equity Transfers 915,157 1,034,737

Contributed Capital Transfers:
Enterprise Funds:

Transit System 119,580 =
Totals $ 1,034,737 S 1,034,737

Note 13. Segment Information - Enterprise Funds

The City maintains five enterprise funds which provide sewage
disposal, water, parking, refuse, and transit services. Selected
financial information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992 is as
follows:

Sewage
Disposal Water Parking
Works Utility Facilities
Operating revenues $ 4,226,246 $ 3,709,979 $ 1,023,553
Depreciation expense 1,362,793 635,322 268,695
Operating income (loss) (573,656) 587,405 240,915
Operating grants = - -
Net income (loss) (24,462) 658,308 39,077
Current capital
contributions 939,190 224,451 -
Property, plant, and
equipment:

Additions 1,412,236 830,534 120,155
Deletions 8,191 9,917 -
Working capital 1,722,621 1,038,336 155,593
Total assets 22,761,364 20,134,049 8,312,071

Bonds payable from
operating revenues 200,000 2,050,000 2,920,000
Total equity 22,256,851 17,806,604 4,973,103
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Refuse
Collection

Operating revenues $ 1,740,294
Depreciation expense 81,672
Operating income (loss) 187,975
Operating grants -
Net income (loss) 251,713
Current capital

contributions -
Property, plant, and

equipment:

Additions 308,060
Deletions -
Working capital 1,182,472
Total assets 1,632,953

Bonds payable from
operating revenues -
Total equity 1,559,457

Note 14. Contributed Capital

During the year, contributed capital

Transit
System

Total
Enterprise
Funds

$ 248,819
186,321
(1,267,570)
441,792
(825,778)

671,977

7,280

190,69

N

2,758,426

2,690,567

$10,948,891
2,534,803
(824,931)
441,792
98,858

1,835,618
2,678,265

18,108
4,289,714

55,598,863

5,170,000

49,286,582

increased by the following

amounts:
Sewage
Disposal Water Parking Refuse Transit
Works Utility Facilities Collection System
Government:
Contributed
capital
transfers $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 119,580
Other contributed
capital . - - - - 537,595
Total Government - = - = 657,175
Intergovernmental - - - - 14,802
Developers and
users 939,190 224,451 = - -
Total Additions 939,190 224,451 = - 671,977
Contributed capital
July 1 21,204,289 1,483,351 3,124 61,704 11,131,310
Contributed capital
June 30 $22,143,479 $1,707,802 S 3,124 S 61,704 $11,803,287
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Note 15. Due to State Pension System

Prior to January 1, 1992, the City of Dubuque maintained its own
single-employer fire and police retirement system. Effective
January 1, 1992, the City became a participating employer in the
statewide multiple-employer Municipal Fire and Police Retirement
System of Iowa (MFPRSI). The City then was required to provide to
MFPRSI assets sufficient to cover the City’s liability under the
pension system as of January 1, 1992.

However, certain variable annuity contracts and guaranteed real
estate contracts, which the City attempted to transfer to MFPRSI,

were not accepted by MFPRSI, since state statute limits what types
of investments MFPRSI can have. Thus, at June 30, 1992, the City
owed MFPRSI $8,524,258 plus accrued interest of $177,575.
Subsequently, in November, 1992, the City paid the remaining amount
due to MFPRSI.

Note 16. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Grants

The City has received financial assistance from numerous federal
and state agencies in the form of grants and entitlements. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally
requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the
grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies.
Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a
liability of the general fund or other applicable funds. However,
in the opinion of management, liabilities resulting from disallowed
claims, if any, will not have a material effect on the City’s
financial position as of June 30, 1992.

Litigation

The City corporation counsel reported that as of June 30, 1992,
various claims and lawsuits were on file against the City, and he
estimated that the potential settlements against the City not
covered by insurance would not materially affect the financial
position of the City. The City has authority to levy additional
taxes (outside the regular limit) to cover uninsured judgments
against the City.

Construction Contracts

The City has recognized as a 1liability only that portion of
construction contracts representing construction completed through
June 30, 1992. The City has additional commitments for signed
constructlon contracts of $1,058,000 as of June 30, 1992. of
these commitments, approximately $50 000 will be funded by general
obligation bonds, $697,000 by federal and state grants, $38,000
from operating revenues, and $273,000 from local option sales tax.
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Note 17. Self-insurance Funds

The City is self insured for workers’ compensation insurance. It
has a workers’ compensation reserve fund to pay the premium for
coverage above $400,000 for each accident and to pay actual claims
up to the excess coverage amount. Included in the self-insurance
fund "accrued claims payable" account are the accrued estimated
liabilities for claims incurred but not paid as of June 30, 1992.

Note 18. Comparison of Actual Expenditures with Budget (Cash
Basis)

Under Towa law, cities are required to account for disbursements in
terms of City government programs. The four City government
programs are Policy and Administration (Administration), Community
Protection (Protective Services), Home and Community Environment
(Facilities and Environment), and Human Development (Leisure
Services). The following table for the entire City, which includes
the general, special revenue, debt service, capital projects,
enterprise, internal service, and trust funds, has been prepared to
demonstrate legal compliance with that requirement:

Variance

Actual Favorable
Program Appropriations Disbursements (Unfavorable)
Administration $ 5,332,954 $ 3,573,605 $ 1,759,349
Protective services 10,968,795 10,510,394 458,401
Facilities and environment 49,581,984 29,354,487 20,227,497
Leisure services 5,884,137 5,744,425 139,712
Total $71,767,870 $49,182,911 $22,584,959

Note 19. Industrial Development Revenue Bonds

The City has issued a total of $44,520,000 of industrial
development revenue bonds under the provisions of Chapter 419 of
the Code of Iowa, of which $29,284,372 is outstanding at June 30,
1992. The bonds and related interest do not constitute liabilities
of the City of Dubuque.

Note 20. Investment in Iowa Trust

on December 11, 1991, the Securities and Exchange Commission
initiated an action against Institutional Treasury Management, the
investment manager of the Iowa Trust, and froze all assets of the
investment manager, including those of the Iowa Trust. This action
was taken pending investigation and determination of whether
Institutional Treasury Management had properly managed funds under
its control and whether sufficient funds were available for
distribution to investors.
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The Iowa Trust was established by local governments pursuant to
Chapter 28E of the Code of Iowa as a means of jointly investing
their public funds. On December 11, 1991, the City of Dubuque had
$15,034,934 of pooled investments, $5,852,835 of Fire Pension Trust
Funds, and $3,010,379 of Police Pension Trust Funds invested in the
Iowa Trust.

A court-appointed receiver’s plan to distribute available funds of
the Iowa Trust to investors was approved by a district court judge.
Under this plan, the City of Dubuque received distributions in
December, 1991, and January, 1992, totaling $4,215,424 of pooled
investments, $1,640,990 of Fire Pension Trust Funds, and $844,036
of Police Pension Trust Funds. The City of Dubuque thus had a
remaining investment in the Iowa Trust of $10,819,510 of pooled
investments, $4,211,845 of Fire Pension Trust Funds, and $2,166,343
of Police Pension Trust Funds at June 30, 1992.

The amount of the loss, if any, cannot currently be determined.
Accordingly, no provision for any loss that may result from this
uncertainty has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

Note 21. Subsequent Events

In August, 1992, the City of Dubuque borrowed $4,200,000 from the
state government. The notes mature on June 1, 1994 through June 1,
1997, with interest rates from 4.65% to 6.15%.

In September, 1992, the City of Dubuque was awarded a $945,000

grant by the Federal Aviation Administration for a construction
project at the City airport.
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GENERAL FUND

The general fund 1is wused to account for resources
traditionally associated with government which are not
required legally or by sound financial management to be
accounted for in another fund.






CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA

GENERAL FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30,

ASSETS

Cash and pooled cash investments

Receivables:

Taxes

Accounts

Accrued interest

Intergovernmental
Due from other funds
Prepaid items

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued employee benefits
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for prepaid items
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved, undesignated
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances
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1992 and 1991

1992

EXHIBIT 2-1

1991

$ 6,028,558

$ 7,111,982

55,746 30,582
283,354 177,503
89,902 188,571
11,096 33,636
580,006 16,774
5,037 6,627

$ 7,053,699

$ 7,565,675

$ 16,709  § 70,781
169,507 65,389
955,400 914,000

1,141,616 1,050,170
5,037 6,627
224,433 198,615

5,682,613
5,912,083

$_7,053,699

6,310,263
6,515,505

$ 7,565,675



EXHIBIT A-2

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
GENERAL FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1951

1992 1991
Revenues:
Taxes $ 5,703,485 $ 5,777,643
Licenses and permits 639,135 618,132
Intergovernmental 900,730 903,643
Charges for services 3,150,036 2,876,224
Fines and forfeits 345,992 360,206
Miscellaneous 380,220 427,367
Interest 1,061,092 2,009,162

Total Revenues

12,180,690

12,972,377

Expenditures:
Current:
Administration 2,153,516 1,927,270
Protective services 7,731,060 7,215,241
Facilities and environment 1,586,826 2,877,194

Leisure services
Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues

3,382,445
14,853,847

3,182,710
15,202,415

Under Expenditures (2,673,157) (2,230,038)
other Financing Sources (Uses): -
Operating transfers in 2,292,975 2,166,642
Operating transfers out (137,249) (173,615)
Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) - 2,155,726 1,993,027
Deficiency of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Under
Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses (517,431) (237,011)
Fund Balances, July 1 6,515,505 6,752,516
Residual equity transfers out (85,991) -

Fund Balances, June 30
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$ 5,912,083

$ 6,515,505
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific
revenues that are 1legally restricted to expenditure for
particular purposes.

Road Use Tax - This fund is used to account for state
revenues allocated to the City for maintenance and
improvement of City streets.

Federal Revenue Sharing - This fund is used to account
for the expenditure of federal revenue sharing
entitlement previously received and committed. These
funds may be spent for any purpose for which the City’s
own revenues may be legally expended.

Community Development - This fund is used to account for
the use of Community Development Block Grant funds as
received from the federal government.

UDAG Repayments - This fund is used to account for Urban
Development Action Grant funds received by the City.

Section VIII Housing - This fund is used to account for
the operations of federal Section VIII Existing, Voucher,
and Mod Rehab projects.

Tort Liability - This fund is used to account for the
administration and payment of damage claims against the
Cityis

Sales Tax - This fund is used to account for local option
sales tax revenues.

State Rental Rehabilitation - This fund is used to
account for the use of state rental rehabilitation funds
as received from the state government.
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CITY OF DUBUQUE,

Iowa

ROAD USE TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS

Cash and pooled cash investments
Intergovernmental receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved, undesignated
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

60

1992

EXHIBIT B-3

1991

$ 3,964,438
214,455

$_4,178,893

$ 3,573,734
224,377

$_3,798,111

$ 27,593 $ 63,660
20,407 14,238
48,000 77.898
75,760 247,008

4,055,133
4,130,893

$_4,178,893

3,473,205
3,720,213

$ 3,798,111



CITY OF DUBUQUE,

IOowA

ROAD USE TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

EXHIBIT B-4

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Expenditures:
Current:
Administration
Facilities and environment
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Uses:
Operating transfers out

Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, June 30

61

1992

1991

$ 3,109,165

2,698,485
—2,698,485

$_3,138,011

3,130
2,275,303
2,278,433

410,680 859,578
s (95,480)
410,680 764,098

3,720,213

$_4,130;893

2,956,115

$_3,720,213
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EXHIBIT B-6

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
FEDERAL REVENUE SHARING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 19%2 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Cash and pooled cash investments $ 1,439 S 1,439
Total Assets $ 1,439 $ 1,439
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 5 617 $ 1,947
Unreserved, undesignated 822 (508)
Total Fund Balances 1,439 1,439

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,439 S 1,439
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EXHIBIT B-7

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
FEDERAL REVENUE SHARING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues $ r $ .
Expenditures:
Current:
Facilities and environment - 305,317
Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures = (305,317)
Fund Balances, July 1 1,439 306,756
Fund Balances, June 30 S 1,439 S 1,439
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CITY OF DUBUQUE,
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Iowa

Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS

Cash and pooled cash investments
Accrued interest receivable
Notes receivable - current
Notes receivable - long-term
Intergovernmental receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued employee benefits
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for long-term notes
receivable
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved, undesignated
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances
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EXHIBIT B-9

1992 1991
$ - $ 343,127
88,796 58,026
453,400 303,385
4,503,900 4,637,832

2,312,247

$_7,.358,343

$ 794
4,053
16,500
47,615

2,287,117
2,356,079

4,503,900
135;335

363,029
5,002,264

$_7.358,343

2,207,677

$_7.550,047

$ 7,421
1,787
14,900

2,135,683
2,159,791

4,637,832
248,715
503,709

5,390,256

S 7,550,047



EXHIBIT B-=10

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues:
Intergovernmental S 928,001 $ 915,877
Miscellaneous 66,851 162,346
Interest 135,743 269,140
Total Revenues 1,130,595 1,347,363
Expenditures:
Current:
Administration 34,144 17,594
Facilities and environment 516,968 743,615
Total Expenditures 551,112 761,209
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 579,483 586,154
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in - 16,083
Operating transfers out (52,318) -
Total Other Financing Sourcs (Uses) (52,318) 16,083
Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over
Expenditures and Other -
Financing Uses 527,165 602,237
Fund Balances, July 1 5,390,256 4,638,019
Residual equity transfers in - 150,000
Residual equity transfers out (915,157) =
Fund Balances, June 30 $_5,002,264 $. 5,390,256
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CITY OF DUBUQUE,

IowA

UDAG REPAYMENTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and

ASSETS

Cash and pooled cash investments
Accrued interest receivable
Notes receivable - current
Notes receivable - long-term

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances:
Reserved for long-term notes receivable
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved, undesignated
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

69

1991

1992

EXHIBIT B-12

1991

$ 66,653
273,041
250,000

4,250,000

$_4,839,694

$ 103,896
275,548
250,000

4,250,000

$_4,879,444

$ 4,250,000

$ 4,250,000

- 29,943
589,694 599,501
4,839,694 4,879,444

$_4,839,694

$ 4,879,444




CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
UDAG REPAYMENTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

EXHIBIT B-13

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1991

1992
Revenues:
Miscellaneous ] 905,420
Interest 326,493
Total Revenues 1,231,913
Expenditures:
Current:
Administration 49,938
Facilities and environment 1,221,725
Total Expenditures 1,271,663

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (39,750)

Other Financing Uses:
Operating transfers out -

Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses : (39,750)
Fund Balances, July 1 4,879,444

Residual equity transfers out -

Fund Balances, June 30 $_4,839,694
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S 158,091
331,507
489,598

60,000
139,680
199,680

289,918

(592,552)

(302,634)
5,332,078

(150, 000)

$_4.879,444
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EXHIBIT B-15

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
SECTION VIII HOUSING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Cash and pooled cash investments $ 205,735 $ 159,536
Intergovernmental receivable 25,798 254,915
Total Assets $ 231,533 $ 414,451
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable S - $ 600
Accrued payroll 3,023 965
Accrued employee benefits 26,200 25,600
Intergovernmental payable 56,854 259,709
Due to other funds 8 185
Total Liabilities 86,085 287,059
Fund Balances: .
Reserved for encumbrances 1,241 3,021
Unreserved, undesignated 144,207 124,371

Total Fund Balances 145,448 127,392

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances ] 231,533 $ 414,451
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EXHIBIT B-16

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
SECTION VIII HOUSING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 3,001,945 $ 2,575,511
Miscellaneous 10,006 3,908
Interest 259 -
Total Revenues 3,012,210 2,579,419
Expenditures:
Current:
Facilities and environment 2,994,154 2,571,902
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 18,056 7,517
Fund Balances, July 1 127,392 119,875
Fund Balances, June 30 S 145,448 S 137,392
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EXHIBIT B-18

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
TORT LIABILITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991

Cash and pooled cash investments $ 1,432 $ 1,815

Taxes receivable 2,844 1,160
Total Assets S 4,276 S 2.975
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances:

Unreserved, undesignated S 4,276 S 2,975

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances S 4,276 S 2,975
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
TORT LIABILITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

EXHIBIT B-19

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1991

1992
Revenues:
Taxes S 289,382
Expenditures:
Current:
Administration 25,299
Protective services 112,052
Facilities and environment 104,292
Leisure services 46,438

Total Expenditures

288,081

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 1,301
Other Financing Sources:
Operating transfers in -
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures 1,301
Fund Balances, July 1

2,975

Residual equity transfers out -

Fund Balances, June 30 S 4,276
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$ 258,422

33,083
100,064
127,735

39,618
300,500

(42,078)

60,000

17,922
15,053

(30,000)
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EXHIBIT B-21

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWaA
SALES TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Cash and pooled cash investments $ 3,342,458 $ 1,999,523
Accrued interest receivable 20,720 10,623
Intergovernmental receivable 1,001,736 898,513
Total Assets $_4,364,914 $_2,908,659
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Fund Balances:
Unreserved, undesignated $_4,364,914 $_2,908,659
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $_4,364,914 $_2.908,659
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
SALES TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

EXHIBIT B-22

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues:
Taxes $ 4,618,071 $ 4,315,606
Interest 148,225 117,689
Total Revenues 4,766,296 4,433,295
Other Financing Uses:
Operating transfers out (3,310,041) (3,876,957)
Excess of Revenues Over Other
Financing Uses 1,456,255 556,338
Fund Balances, July 1 2,908,659 2,352,321
Fund Balances, June 30 $ 4,364,914 $ 2,908,659
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EXHIBIT B-24

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
STATE RENTAL REHABILITATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
cash and pooled cash investments S 83,072 S -
Accrued interest receivable 2,965 -
Notes receivable - current 38,000 -
Notes receivable - long-term 1,103,002 -
Intergovernmental receivable 175,398 -

Total Assets $_1,402,437 S -

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Deferred revenue S 373,631 S =

Fund Balances:
Reserved for long-term notes

receivable 1,103,002 -
Reserved for encumbrances 198,233 -
Unreserved, undesignated (272,429) -
Total Fund Balances 1,028,806 -

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $_1,402,437 ] -
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CITY OF DUBUQUE,

Iowa

EXHIBIT B-25

STATE RENTAL REHABILITATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Facilities and environment
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures
Fund Balances, July 1
Residual equity transfers in

Fund Balances, June 30

82

1992

1991

$ 109,054
4,935
113,989

340

113,649

915,157

$_1,028,806
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources and payment of general obligation bond principal and
interest from governmental resources and special assessment
bond principal and interest from special assessment levies
when the government is obligated in some manner for the

payment.

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the
receipt of general property taxes used to pay general
obligation long-term debt, court judgments, and other
related costs.

Tax Increment Fund - This fund is used to account for the
receipt of property taxes and for the payment of the
principal and interest costs on the tax increment
financing districts’ long-term debt service.

Dog Track Fund - This fund is used to account for the
receipt of monies from the Dubuque Racing Association to
pay the principal and interest costs on general
obligation bonds issued on the Association’s behalf as
well as costs of maintenance or repairs.

Special Assessment Fund - This fund is used to account
for the financing of public improvements that are deemed
to benefit primarily the properties against which special
assessments are levied and to accumulate monies for the
payment of principal and interest on the outstanding
long-term debt service.
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30,

ASSETS

1992 and 1991

EXHIBIT C-3

Cash and pooled cash investments
Taxes receivable
Notes and contracts receivable
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Matured bond interest payable

Fund Balances:
Reserved for debt service

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

86

1992 1991

$ 406,651 $ 369,655
31,395 17,223
150,000 175,000

$ 588,046

$ 300

587,746

$ 588,046

$ 561,878

$ 300

561,578

$ 561,878



BIT C-4

EXHT

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
DEBT SERVICE FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues:
Taxes $ 3,343,474 $ 3,314,355
Racing Association - 363,215
Interest = 5,293
Total Revenues 3,343,474 3,682,863
Expenditures:
Administration 6,728 1,284
Principal retirement 2,165,000 1,724,000
Interest and fiscal charges 1,241,543 1,616,901
Total Expenditures 3,413,271 3,342,185
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (69,797) 340,678
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 95,965 -
Operating transfers out = (453,769)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 95,965 (453,769)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses 26,168 (113,091)
Fund Balances, July 1 561,578 674,669
Fund Balances, June 30 S 587,746 S 561,578
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EXHIBIT C-6

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
TAX INCREMENT DEBT SERVICE FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Cash and pooled cash investments S 503,379 S 782,680
Total Assets S 503,379 S 782,680

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances:

Reserved for debt service S 503,379 S 782,680
Total Liabilites and Fund Balances S 503,379 S 782,680

89



EXHIBIT C-7

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
TAX INCREMENT DEBT SERVICE FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances
For the fiscal years ended June 30,-1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues:
Taxes ] 466,013 S 174,602
Interest 12,623 69,339
Total Revenues 478,636 243,941
Expenditures:
Principal retirement 175,714 52,857
Interest and fiscal charges 193,895 106,868
Total Expenditures ’ 369,609 159,725
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 109,027 84,216
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Bond proceeds - 2,200,000
Operating transfers in 50,048 -
Operating transfers out (438,376) (1.517,227)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (388,328) 682,773
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses (279,301) 766,989
Fund Balances, July 1 782,680 17,818
Residual equity transfer out - (2,127)
Fund Balances, June 30 S 503,379 $ 782,680
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
DOG TRACK DEBT SERVICE FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30, 1992 and 1991

EXHIBIT C-9

1991

S 399,412
2,323

ASSETS 1992
Cash and pooled cash investments ] 534,452
Accrued interest receivable 3,102

Total Assets S 537,554

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances:

S 401,735

$ 401,735

Reserved for debt service S 537,554
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances S 537,554
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CITY OF DUBUQUE,

IOWA

DOG TRACK DEBT SERVICE FUND

EXHIBIT C-10

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

Revenues:
Racing Association
Interest
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses
Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, June 30

93

1992

1991

$ 1,763,164

$ 5,090,650

24,869 36,579
1,788,033 5,127,229
1,584,011 2,665,989

61,405 623,433
6,798 175,860
1,652,214 3,465,282
135,819 1,661,947

- 869,158

- (3,001,429)

- (2,132,271)
135,819 (470,324)
401,735 872,059

S 537,554

S 401,735
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EXHIBIT C-=12

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DEBT SERVICE FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Cash and pooled cash investments 8 788,371 $ 582,120
Special assessments receivable 585,959 686,077

Total Assets $_1,374,330 $_1,268,197

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Deferred revenue $ 401,948 $ 521,473

Fund Balances:
Reserved for debt service 972,382 746,724

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,374,330 $ 1,268,197
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DEBT SERVICE FUND

EXHIBIT C-13

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

Revenues:
Special assessments
Interest
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Uses:
Operating transfers out

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, June 30

96

1992

1991

S 295,425

$ 338,581

75,675 74,963
371,100 413,544
80,000 90,000
23,825 38,150
103,825 128,150
267,275 285,394
(41,617) (342,897)
225,658 (57,503)
746,724 804,227

S 972,382

$ 746,724
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital projects funds account for resources used for the
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other
than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

Street Comnstruction Fund - This fund is used to account
for the resources and costs related to street capital
improvements.

Storm Sewer Construction Fund - This fund is used to
account for the resources and costs related to storm
sewer capital improvements.

General Construction Fund - This fund is used to account
for the resources and costs related to non-assignable
capital improvements.

General Obligation Bond Proceeds Fund - This fund is used
to account for general obligation bond proceeds prior to
their transfer to the respective construction fund.

Airport Construction Fund - This fund is used to account
for the resources and costs related to airport capital
improvements.

Park Construction Fund - This fund is used to account for
the resources and costs related to park capital
improvements.

Sales Tax Construction Pund - This fund is used to
account for the resources and costs related to capital
improvements financed through the local option sales tax.

Golf Construction Fund - This fund is used to account for
the resources and costs related to golf course capital
improvements.

Corporate Center Construction Fund - This fund is used to
account for the resources and costs related to capital
improvements at the corporate center.
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EXHIBIT D-3

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
STREET CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Cash and pooled cash investments $ 2,929,379 $ 2,816,532
Accrued interest receivable 18,248 8,910

Total Assets $_2,947,627 $ 2,825,442

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 274,912 $ -
Accrued payroll 4,775 3,033
Total Liabilities 279,687 3:033

Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 145,406 319,891

Unreserved, undesignated 2,522,534 2,502,518
Total Fund Balances 2,667,940 2,822,409

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $_2,947,627 S 2,825,442
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EXHIBIT D-4

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
STREET CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 97,707 S 280,895
Miscellaneous 39,018 18,974
Interest 168,368 93,966
Total Revenues 305,093 393,835
Expenditures:
Capital outlay 2,074,726 2,681,955
Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures (1,769,633) (2,288,120)
Other Financing Sources:
Operating transfers in 1,615,164 1,337,081
Deficiency of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Under
Expenditures (154,469) (951,039)
Fund Balances, July 1 2,822,409 3,773,448
Fund Balances, June 30 $_ 2,667,940 $ 2,822,409
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, iOWA
STORM SEWER CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS

Cash and pooled cash investments
Accrued interest receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved, undesignated
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances
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EXHIBIT D=5

1992 1991
897,408 205,755
6,046 687
903,454 206,442
7,278 307
- 259
7,278 566
27,388 22,562
868,788 183,314
896,176 205,876
903,454 206,442




EXHIBIT D=6

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
STORM SEWER CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues:
Miscellaneous $ - $ 1,522
Interest 52,958 8,439
Total Revenues 52,958 9,961
Expenditures:
Capital outlay 364,658 124,662
Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures (311,700) (114,701)
Other Financing Sources:
Operating transfers in 1,002,000 144,000
Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures 690,300 29,299
Fund Balances, July 1 205,876 176,577
Fund Balances, June 30 S 896,176 S 205,876
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EXHIBIT D-7

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
GENERAL CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Cash and pooled cash investments S 544,439 S 953,728
Total Assets S 544,439 S 953,728
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable S 2,672 $ 90,641
Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 29,064 278,239
Unreserved, undesignated 512,703 584,848
Total Fund Balances 541,767 863,087

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances S 544,439 S 953,728
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EXHIBIT D=8

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
GENERAL CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues:
Intergovernmental S - $ 36,966
Miscellaneous 38,760 20,115
Interest = 50,000
Total Revenues 38,760 107,081
Expenditures:
Capital outlay 765,175 6,283,901
Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures (726,415) (6,176,820)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Bond proceeds = 4,000,000
Operating transfers in 438,376 3,799,377
Operating transfers out (33,281) (324,333)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 405,095 7,475,044
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing :
Uses (321,320) 1,298,224
Fund Balances, July 1 863,087 (485,899)
Residual equity transfers in - 50,762
Fund Balances, June 30 $ 541,767 $ 863,087
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EXHIBIT D-9

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND PROCEEDS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Cash and pooled cash investments S 36,478 $ 2,488,966
Accrued interest receivable - 11,606

Total Assets S 36,478 $_2,500,572

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Fund Balances:

Unreserved, undesignated $ 36,478 8 2,500,572
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances S 36,478 $_2,500,572
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EXHIBIT D-10

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND PROCEEDS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues:
Interest $ 5,906 $ 57,816
Expenditures:
Capital outlay - 61,530
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 5,906 (3,714)
Oother Financing Sources (Uses):
Bond proceeds = 2,500,000
Operating transfers out (2,470,000) (1,938,213)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,470,000) 561,787
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses (2,464,094) 558,073
Fund Balances, July 1 2,500,572 1,942,499
Fund Balances, June 30 $ 36,478 $_ 2,500,572
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EXHIBIT D-11

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Cash and pooled cash investments $ 149,009 $ 52,498
Accrued interest receivable 1,014 203
Total Assets S 150,023 S 52,701
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 4,027 $ -
Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 8,760 35,387
Unreserved, undesignated 137,236 17,314
Total Fund Balances 145,996 52,701
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances ] 150,023 S 52,701
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT D-=12

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Interest

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Capital outlay

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Operating transfers in

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balances, June 30

109

1992 1991
218,132 100,958
584 10,264
4,295 1,313
223,011 112,535
173,816 120,387
49,195 (7,852)
44,100 49,213
93,295 41,361
52,701 11,340
145,996 52,701



EXHIBIT D-13

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
PARK CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991

Total Assets S - S =

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Due to other funds $ 143 $ 15,118
Fund Balances:
Unreserved, undesignated (143) (15,118)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances S - ] -
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
PARK CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT D-=14

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues:
Miscellaneous S 13,887 $ -
Expenditures:
Capital outlay 12,472 11,404
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 1,415 (11,404)
Other Financing Sources:
Operating transfers in 13,560 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures 14,975 (11,404)
Fund Balances, July 1 (15,118) (3,714)
Fund Balances, June 30 $ (143) S (15.118)
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EXHIBIT D-15

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
SALES TAX CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Cash and pooled cash investments $ 1,377,090 $ 1,094,883
Accrued interest receivable 8,767 4,385

Total Assets $. 1,385,857 S 1,099,268

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 922 $ 7,729
Accrued payroll 669 =
Total Liabilities 1,591 7.729
Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 273,695 436,848
Unreserved, undesignated 1,110,571 654,691

Total Fund Balances 1,384,266 1,091,539

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,385,857 $_1,099,268
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EXHIBIT D-16

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
SALES TAX CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues:
Interest $ 66,042 $ 41,009
Expenditures:
Capital outlay 642,696 891,321
Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures (576,654) (850,312)
Other Financing Sources:
Operating transfers in 902,970 850,929
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures 326,316 617
Fund Balances, July 1 1,091,539 1,095,267
Residual equity transfers out (33,589) (4,345)
Fund Balances, June 30 $ 1,384,266 $ 1,091,539
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EXHIBIT D-17

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
GOLF CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Cash and pooled cash investments $ 14,917 $ 12,070
Total Assets S 14,917 $ 12,070
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Fund Balances:
Unreserved, undesignated $ 14,917 S 12,070
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 14,917 S 12,070
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CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
GOLF CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT D-18

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991

1992 1991
Revenues S - $ -
Expenditures:
Capital outlay 24,877 38,479
Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures (24,877) (38,479)
Other Financing Sources:
Operating transfers in 27,724 22,560
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures 2,847 (15,919)
Fund Balances, July 1 12,070 27,98¢°
Fund Balances, June 30 S 14,917 $ 12,070
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EXHIBIT D-19

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
CORPORATE CENTER CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30, 1992 and 1991

ASSETS 1992 1991
Intergovernmental receivable $ 594,049 S -
Total Assets S 594,049 S -

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 386,361 S -
Due to other funds 529,820 -
Total Liabilities 916,181 -
Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 745,859 -
Unreserved, undesignated (1,067,991) -
Total Fund Balances (322,132) =

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances S 594,049 S -
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EXHIBIT D-20
CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA
CORPORATE CENTER CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and 1991
1992 1991
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 942,612 $ -
Expenditures:
Capital outlay 1,264,744 -

Deficiency of Revenues Under
Expenditures (322,132) -

Fund Balances, July 1 - -

Fund Balances, June 30 S __(322,132) $ =
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises -- where the intent of the government’s council is
that the costs of providing goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges; or where the govermment’s
council has decided that periodic determination of net income
is appropriate for accountability purposes.

Sewage Disposal Works - This fund is used to account for
the operations of the City’s sewage disposal works and
services.

Water Utility - This fund is used to account for the
operations of the City’s water facilities and services.

Parking Facilities - This fund is used to account for the
operations of the City-owned parking ramps and other
parking facilities.

Refuse Collection - This fund is used to account for the
operations of the City’s refuse collection services.

Transit System - This fund is used to account for the
operations of the City’s bus and other transit services.
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